
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 21 June 2021.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Companies 
Committee  

     
 

 

Tuesday, 29 June 2021 at 2.00 pm 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor John Dawson (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Bob Adams, Councillor Ashley Baxter, Councillor Philip Knowles, 
Councillor Susan Sandall, Councillor Ian Stokes and Councillor Mark Whittington 
 

 

Agenda 
 
 

1.   Apologies for absence 

 
 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the meeting 

 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 23 February 2021 

 
(Pages 3 - 9) 

4.   Updates from the previous meeting 
To consider updates on Actions agreed at the previous meeting. 

 

(Pages 11 - 12) 

5.   Work Programme 2021 - 2022 
To consider the Committee’s Work Programme for 2021 – 2022. 

 

(Pages 13 - 14) 

6.   Exclusion of Press and Public 
Under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public may be 
excluded from the meeting during any listed items of business, on the grounds that if they 
were to be present, exempt information could be disclosed to them as defined in the relevant 
paragraphs of Schedule 12A of the Act 
 
 

 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
7.   Environment SK Limited 

This report provides an update on delivery of the 5 Year Business Plan and 
proposes changes to the Directors of the company. 
 

Appendices 1 and 2 to this report are exempt under paragraph 3, Schedule 

12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) because it contains 

information relating to the financial or business affairs of an individual or 

organisation.  Should Members wish to discuss their contents, they must 

resolve to exclude the Press and Public.  

 

(Pages 15 - 25) 

8.   Gravitas Housing Limited 
This report provides updates on; Wherry’s Lane, Bourne development 
project for the period up to 31 March 2021 and on the marketing strategy for 
the disposal of the properties at the Wherry’s Lane development.   

 

(Pages 27 - 31) 

9.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special circumstances, 
decides is urgent 
 

 



1 
 

Minutes 
Companies Committee 
Tuesday, 23 February 2021 

  
 
 

 
Committee Members present Members as Company Directors 
  
Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor John Dawson (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor Susan Sandall 
Councillor Ian Stokes 
Councillor Mark Whittington 
 

Councillor Kelham Cooke  
(LeisureSK Ltd) 
Councillor Barry Dobson (LeisureSK Ltd) 
Councillor Adam Stokes (LeisureSK Ltd) 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew 
(LeisureSK Ltd) 
 

Officers Other Members 
 
Chief Executive (Karen Bradford) 
Assistant Chief Executive, Housing 
Delivery (Ken Lyon) 
Strategic Director Commercial and 
Operations (Gary Smith) 
Interim Director of Finance (Richard 
Wyles) 
Assistant Director Commercial and 
Operations (Ian Yates) 
Head of Leisure (Karen Whitfield) 
Director of Law and Governance  
(Monitoring Officer)(Shahin Ismail) 
Democratic Officer (Lucy Bonshor, 
Naomi Page)(none) 

Councillor Robert Reid 
Councillor Sue Woolley 
 

 

 
23. Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence 
 
A register of attendance was taken. Councillor Mike Exton was substituting for 
Councillor Bob Adams and Councillor Phil Dilks was substituting for Councillor Philip 
Knowles. 
 
24. Disclosure of interests 
 
None disclosed. 
 

3

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

25. Minutes of the meeting held on 21 October 2020 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 21 October were agreed as a correct record. 
 
26. Updates from the previous meeting 
 
The Chairman referred to Minute 18 from the meeting held on 21 October 2020, 
updates from the previous meeting.  He wished to clarify that the action was for both the 
Communication Team and the Directors of EnvironmentSK Ltd to work together to 
promote the positive work being undertaken by EnvironmentSK Ltd. 
 
ACTION:   
 

That the Communications Teams and the Directors of EnvironmentSK Ltd 
work together to promote the positive work being undertaken by 
EnvironmentSK Ltd. 

 
27. Gravitas Housing Limited 
 
The Deputy Leader gave a brief update to the Committee on the current position with 
regard to Wherry’s Lane, Bourne.   
 

• Currently there were 14 units available, three reserved and eight completed.   

• There had been no physical viewing of the flats since the end of 2020 although 
interest remains strong.  

• The townhouses are still available for purchase.   

• All options for the future of the dwellings are still being considered including 
rentals. 

• Currently there was no interest from major investors. 

• New agents had been appointed, Pygott and Crone and the development had 
been relaunched, together with a new marketing strategy, website with fit for 
purpose pictures of the properties. 

• 44% of properties had been sold or had a reservation on them. 

• The Company needed to respond to the current market position and look at all 
options available to it. 

 

The Chairman asked why the Committee had not received a brief paper summarising 
the current activity and position. It was stated that activity on the project has been 
minimal with only the appointment of new agents being the only change.  However it 
was agreed that an update report would be brought back to a future meeting of the 
Committee. 
 
ACTION:   
 

A report detailing the current position with the Wherry’s Lane, Bourne 
development to be brought to a future meeting of the Committee, report to 
include the financial position. 

 

4



3 
 

Questions were asked in relation to the current Business Plan for Gravitas Housing Ltd 
and whether the appointment of new agents had resulted in any sales or reservations.  
Reference was made to the housing market and the lack of housing for the public and 
that there were private houses which due to the current market weren’t selling. 
 
It was noted that the current Business Plan for Gravitas Housing Ltd was for 2017-2021.  
Currently the main focus of the company was the Wherry’s Lane development.  Further 
options for the development would be looked at including rentals of the properties, 
however, property rentals did not receive any capital receipts.  The financial position 
would be reassessed in light of the current market and the £1.6m that Gravitas Housing 
Ltd needed to repay to the Council. 
 
Members supported the need to have hard copy of information as it was difficult to 
debate financial information without a paper and they looked forward to a formal report 
at the next meeting of the Committee to include the current financial position. 
 
28. East Midlands Building Consultancy (EMBC) 
 
The Strategic Director for Commercial and Operations introduced the report and the 
abridged Business Plan which was appended to the report.  It was noted that the 
Business Plan contained commercially sensitive information, therefore, if Members 
wanted to discuss it in more detail, then the meeting would have to go into closed 
session.   
 
The Chairman noted that although it was referred to as a Business Plan it was more a 
Co-operation Partnership Agreement. 
 
The Assistant Director Commercial and Operations gave a background to building 
control which was a statutory service provided by a local authority.  Building regulations 
set the standards for design, construction and alterations to virtually every building.  
Previously this would have been done by the local council, however, the Government 
created a market where building regulation approvals could be sought by application to 
a local authority or an Approved Inspector, creating a commercial market. East 
Midlands Building Consultancy (EMBC) Inspectors had to complete in the market place 
with other Approved Inspectors which was why the Business Plan appended to the 
report was exempt as it contained commercial information.  
 
When the Government created the market, individual authorities struggled with deficits.  
In 2014, South Kesteven District Council’s deficit was over £100,000.  The EMBC 
partnership was formed with Rushcliffe Borough Council in 2014 and Newark and 
Sherwood District Council joined in 2015/16.  Benefits of the partnership included 
shared costs, overheads and expertise. 
 
The Assistant Director of Commercial and Operations then explained about the two 
different types of works, one was “fee earning” the other was “non-fee earning”.  Fee 
earning works were when the EMBC Inspectors competed with the Approved Inspectors 
in the commercial arena and costs had to account for with the fee earning competition 
and a breakeven position achieved. 

5



4 
 

Non-fee earning was where the local authority had to maintain registers of all building 
control approvals awarded in its area, whether this was issued by itself or by an 
Approved Inspector, this was classed as ‘non-fee earning’ work.  Other non-fee earning 
work included general advice to the public and work associated with dangerous 
structures.   The cost of non-fee earning work fell to the General Fund of each local 
authority. 
 
There were two elements within the Partnership: 

• to compete, to offer services at the right fees to breakeven, and  

• to provide Best Value for Money for the costs that fell on the Council Tax payer.  
More detail was contained in the Business Plan.   

 
Details in relation to furloughed staff were given and Members were referred to Chart 1 
of the report.  When Covid-19 had hit in April 2020 there had been a significant fall in 
the level of work activity and 12 staff had been furloughed. However, as work activity 
had resumed staff had gradually returned until all staff were back by mid-August 2020, 
details were shown within the Business Plan at Table 7.    Work activity had rebounded 
and from September 2020 onwards it had been significantly higher than the previous 
year.  One reason for this could be the change in working habits due to Covid-19 with 
more home extensions and similar types of building work being carried out which had 
benefitted the EMBC Partnership. 
 
The financial performance for the EMBC partnership was detailed within the report at 
3.16.  A small surplus from fee earning work was split three ways equally between the 
three partners, the cost for non-fee earning work was also split equally between the 
three partners.  The partnership worked well and covered a large area.  South Kesteven 
was the lead authority with the other two partners paying a management fee of £20,000. 
 
Members then debated the report before them and the following points were raised: 
 

• Geographical area covered and those areas not covered, were there any 
proposals to extend the partnership.  It was noted that there was a potential 
opportunity to work in partnership with South Holland District Council and 
Rutland County Council. 

• Were there similar types of arrangements elsewhere in the country – South 
Cambridgeshire and Derbyshire. 

• Benchmarking work carried out with other partnerships. 

• Opportunities to work in partnerships with larger organisations, such as CNC 
Building Control Norfolk. 

• Market kept under review. 

• Current market share 50%. 
 
The Committee asked to receive an update on the EMBC partnership in due course. 
 
ACTION:  
 
The Committee to receive an update on EMBC in the future. 
 

6



5 
 

The Committee congratulated the Assistant Director Commercial and Operations on the 
detailed report.  As this was the last meeting of the Committee that the Assistant 
Director Commercial and Operations would be attending in this role, he was thanked for 
all his hard work over the long period of time that he had worked for the Council and he 
was wished a happy and healthy retirement.   
 
29. LeisureSK Ltd Business Plan 2021/22 
 
The Committee received a report on the Business Plan for LeisureSK Ltd for the period 
January 2021 to March 2022 which followed on from the Business Plan endorsed by the 
Companies Committee in October 2020.   It had been necessary to revise the original 
five year financial projections to take account of the third national lockdown, in addition 
the first year of trading had been extended to include January 2021 to March 2022 to 
align with the Council’s budgeting process.  Due to the ongoing impact of Covid-19 it 
was difficult to accurately predict the income and expenditure for LeisureSK Ltd over the 
initial 15 month period. 
 
The financial projections contained within the Business Plan had been developed in 
conjunction with the Council and supported by Sports and Leisure Consultancy, (SLC).  
The financial performance of the leisure centres pre Covid-19 had been used as a 
baseline.  Adjustments had been made to take account of the leisure centres recovery 
following the previous extended period of lockdown in the summer.  Assumptions had 
also been made in relation to the financial projections around when the leisure centres 
would re-open and when the job retention scheme would end. 
 
As more information became available the Directors of LeisureSK Ltd would monitor the 
Business Plan and ensure that appropriate steps were taken to limit the Council’s 
financial exposure. 
 
Confirmation was given in respect of the Board of Directors and the Committee were 
notified that the Non-Executive Director, David Monkhouse had been appointed and 
joined the Board in January 2021.  Reference was made to one of the appendices to the 
report which gave information on the new Non-Executive Director.   
 
A question was asked about the recruitment process for the Non-Executive Director to 
which the Deputy Leader, the Leader of the Council and the Head of Leisure Services 
replied. 
 
A question was asked about the responsibilities of the Non-Executive Director and 
whether or not there were any exemptions.  It was requested that details on the 
responsibilities of the Non-Executive Director be reported back to the Committee. 
 
ACTION: 
 
A report on the responsibilities of the Non-Executive Director of LeisureSK Ltd be 
submitted to the next meeting of the Committee.  
 

7



6 
 

A brief debate on whether or not to go in to closed session at that point in the agenda 
was held and it was stated that the meeting should be in open session for as long as 
possible. 
 
Reference was made to pages 61-66 of the agenda pack which one Member felt was 
unnecessary, but thanked the Officers for the preparation work that had gone into the 
Business Plan for LeisureSK Ltd.  Reference was made to the news that had been 
given the previous day in respect of the leisure centres and when they would be open.  
It was confirmed that the leisure centres would be opened as soon as it was safe to do 
so having regard to all the current regulations in place and the Board of Directors for 
LeisureSK Ltd would be looking at plans to do this. 
 
Comments were made in respect of the pricing strategy for pool charges and the size of 
the facility particularly in respect of the Stamford pool.  The comments were noted and it 
was stated that this would be discussed at the Board meeting. 
 
The Chairman stated that the decisions around the company were more than strict, 
commercial and financial decisions.  There was also the broader benefits to the public’s 
wellbeing, and he asked how the Committee was to monitor and track the success of 
LeisureSK Ltd. 
 
The Chief Executive replied that currently a Leisure Strategy was being drafted by the 
Leisure Team.  LeisureSK Ltd was not just profit and loss, but had a wider remit as it 
also catered to the mental and physical wellbeing of residents.  A report would be going 
to the next meeting of the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee where they would be looking at performance metrics for LeisureSK Ltd and 
other Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s).  
 
The Chairman asked if the information could appended to future reports to enable the 
Committee to understand the targets and direction of travel for LeisureSK Ltd. 
 
ACTION: 
 
Key Performance Indicators to be appended to LeisureSK Ltd reports in the 
future. 
 
15:12  It was proposed, seconded and agreed to exclude the press and public during 
this part of the meeting because of the likelihood that exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3,of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) would 
be disclosed to them. This is because the papers contained information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of an individual or organisation.  
 
15:38 back in Public session 
 
The Chairman stated that one of the recommendations from the exempt session was 
that the Non-Executive Director, David Monkhouse be asked to attend a meeting of the 
Committee to answer questions on the operational assumptions made within the 
Business Plan for LeisureSK Ltd.  

8



7 
 

ACTION: 
 
That the Non-Executive Director of LeisureSK Ltd be invited to attend a future 
meeting of the Committee to answer questions on the operational assumptions 
made within the Business Plan for LeisureSK Ltd. 
 
The proposals as outlined within the report were then voted on by exception. 
 
DECISIONS 
 

1. To approve the Business Plan for LeisureSK Ltd to cover the period 
January 2021 to March 2022. 

2. To undertake formal scrutiny to assess the performance of LeisureSK Ltd 
against the Business Plan twice a year. 

 
30. Work Programme 2020/21 
 
Members noted the work programme appended to the agenda.  The Chairman 
reminded Members that they could contact him or the Vice-Chairman with any issue 
relevant to the Committee’s work programme. 
 
31. Close of meeting 
 
Meeting closed at 15:41. 
 
 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



Action Sheet 

To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the 23 February 2021 meeting of the Companies Committee. 
 

min 
no 

Agenda item Action(s) Assigned to Comments/Status Deadline 

26 Updates from 
the previous 
meeting 
 

That the Communications 
Teams and the Directors of 
EnvironmentSK Ltd work 
together to promote the 
positive work being 
undertaken by 
EnvironmentSK Ltd. 

Communications 
and Directors of 
EnvironmentSK 
Ltd 

The Communications Team continue to 
promote the positive work of 
EnvironmentSK Ltd though SK Today, with 
the local media, and across social media 
including Twitter and Facebook.  Further 
promotions will be developed over the 
coming months. 

COMPLETE 

27 Gravitas 
Housing 
Limited 
 

A report detailing the current 
position with the Wherry’s 
Lane, Bourne development 
to be brought to a future 
meeting of the Committee, 
report to include the financial 
position. 

Richard Wyles 
(Interim Director 
of Finance, s151 
Officer) 

Report added to the Work Programme for 
the next meeting – 29 June 2021. 

COMPLETE 

28 East Midlands 
Building 
Consultancy 
(EMBC) 
 

The Committee to receive an 
update on EMBC in the 
future. 

 

Gary Smith 
(Strategic 
Director, 
Commercial and 
Operations) 

Democratic Services added to the Work 
Programme under items to be allocated 

Members to 
agree a 
committee 
date for 
consideration 

11

A
genda Item

 4



29 LeisureSK Ltd 
Business Plan 

• A report on the 
responsibilities of the 
Non-Executive Director 
of LeisureSK Ltd be 
submitted to the next 
meeting of the 
Committee.  

 

• Key Performance 
Indicators to be 
appended to LeisureSK 
Ltd reports in the future. 

 

• That the Non-Executive 
Director of LeisureSK Ltd 
be invited to attend a 
future meeting of the 
Committee to answer 
questions on the 
operational assumptions 
made within the Business 
Plan for LeisureSK Ltd. 

Karen Whitfield 
(Head of 
Leisure) 

 
 
 
 
 

Karen Whitfield 
(Head of 
Leisure) 
 
 

Karen Whitfield 
(Head of 
Leisure) 

Gary Smith (Strategic Director, Commercial 
& Operations) has proposed that the Non-
Executive Director is invited to the 
September meeting to discuss his role and 
how he is supporting the Board of Directors 
and LeisureSK Ltd. 
 
 

It is also proposed that a report detailing the 
first six months of operation is brought to 
the September meeting. 
 
 

Subject to Members approval, be invited to 
the September meeting of the Committee. 
 

Members to 
agree 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Members to 
agree 
 
 
 

Members to 
agree 

 

12



Companies Committee Work Plan 2021 - 2022 

Item Current Issues 
Meeting 

Date 
Outcome Sought 

EnvironmentSK Ltd • Review of Business Plan  

Six monthly update 
Lead Officer: Ian Yates (Assistant Director for 
Commercial and Operations) 

 
 
 
 

29 June 
2021 

Member to review and raise 
questions and concerns on items 
considered. 

Gravitas Housing Ltd Update on Wherry’s Lane development project for the 
period up to 31 March 2021 and an update on the 
marketing strategy for the disposal of the properties.   
 
Lead officer: Richard Wyles (Interim Director of 
Finance, s151 Officer) 

Member to review and raise 
questions and concerns on items 
considered. 

  21 
September 

2021 

 
 
 
 

   
2 November 

2021 

 
 
 
 

EnvironmentSK Ltd • Review of Business Plan  

Six monthly update 
Lead Officer: Ian Yates (Assistant Director for 
Commercial and Operations) 

 
25 January 

2021 

Member to review and raise 
questions and concerns on items 
considered. 

  

 
26 April 

2022 
 

 

13

A
genda Item

 5



 

 

 

Items to be allocated 

Auber’s Ridge Management 
Company 

• Annual accounts 

• AGM notes 

LeisureSK Ltd 
• that the Non-Executive Director is invited to the September meeting to discuss his role and how he is 

supporting the Board of Directors and LeisureSK Ltd. – Members to agree that this item be added to 
the Work Programme for consideration on 21 September 2021.  

East Midlands Building 
Consultancy 

• Update on the Partnership 

InvestSK Ltd 
• Review of Business Plan (including the Stakeholder Management and Communication Strategy) 

• Deliverables in relation to SKDC’s Corporate Plan 

14



 

 

 

Companies Committee 
29 June 2021 

Report of: Councillor Dr Peter Moseley 
Chairman of the Board, 
Environment SK Limited  

   

         
  

Environment SK Limited 

This report provides an update on delivery of the 5 Year Business Plan and proposes changes to 
the Directors of the company. 

The appendices 1 and 2 to this report are exempt under paragraph 3, Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) because it contains information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of an individual or organisation. 

 

Report Author 

Ian Yates, Director, Environment SK Ltd 

 
 01476 606201 

  i.yates@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Clean and Sustainable 

Environment 

Administrative All Wards 

 

Approved by: Mark Jones, Director, Environment SK Ltd 4 May 2021 

Signed off by: Cllr Dr Peter Moseley, Chairman, Environment SK Ltd 5 May 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

 

1. Notes the updates provided; and 

2. Support the proposed changes to the Directorships, as detailed in the report. 

15

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

                   

 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 The 5 year Business Plan for Environment SK Limited was presented to the 22nd September 

2020 Companies Committee. This report provides a further update and details progress to 

date. Environment SK Ltd is a wholly owned company of South Kesteven District Council 

providing facilities management focused on grounds maintenance, arboriculture and 

horticultural services to the Council, other authorities, parish and town councils, business 

and the public. It was established to provide the Council’s grounds maintenance services 

and provide flexibility for a dynamic and evolving district ambition, and to deliver additional 

commercial financial benefits. 

 

2 Progress 

2.1 As Environment SK operates in a competitive environment many of the details are 

commercially sensitive. However, to assist in providing transparency, a high-level update 

on each area of focus is provided in this public report. Please note the financial figures 

provided are estimates, being subject to end of year final account processes. 

 

2.2 Developing and operating an effective sales/marketing function 

With the reduction in core contract value, securing commercial income is key to ensuring 

the sustainability and success of the company. In the current economic climate this has 

been challenging. The marketing and sales arrangements resulted in an overall 58% 

success rate for all quotes generated. A more detailed breakdown is provided in the exempt 

Appendix 1. The level of external sales in year 2 (April 2020 to March 2021) achieved 

£110,000 against a target of £87,000. Overall sales met target at £960,000. New contracts 

have also been recently secured for sites at Lincoln, Boston and Stamford. 

 

2.3 Forecasting and adapting to changes in the economic environment 

The financial management of the company facilitates ongoing forward projections allowing 

resources to be adapted in line with business performance and the external market. Greater 

flexibility within the permanent and casual mix of the workforce has been delivered as  

 

16



 

 
 

planned. The core workforce has been reduced in line with core contract reductions. 5 

permanent employees were released with associated one-off costs. The core contract 

reductions did not align easily with employee reductions. This reduction therefore placed 

greater urgency on seeking different ways of delivery to effect operational efficiencies. 

Workforce planning and resourcing with seasonal workers has been surprisingly more 

challenging than expected with the local job market being significantly influenced by the 

Covid situation and Brexit implications. 

 

2.4 Treating all stakeholders professionally  

We have maintained a close focus on building relationships with our key stakeholders. We 

have invested time and effort in managing customer relationships, developing bespoke 

services for clients and consequently securing additional work. Our flexible and close 

relationship with our core client has improved, specifically offering alternative solutions to 

the housing client and in providing added value services. We have provided assistance and 

support for key Council services during the Covid pandemic, ranging from providing support 

for the priority refuse collection service, through to ensuring the main vaccination site at 

Grantham had safe car parks and walkways during the peak winter period. 

 

2.5 Establishing contracts fit for the future 

Work has been ongoing with the core client to provide a fit for purpose arrangement 

reflecting their changing needs and delivering a more transparent set of agreed costs and 

returns. Our approach with client contracts looks forward, building on our core objectives of 

quality, service and value for money. This has been a challenge, as reductions in costs must 

relate to reductions in service. However, working in partnership with the housing service 

client has resulted in a much-improved higher standard of service being delivered for the 

2021/22 season. Specifically, the introduction of a “cut and collect” grass cutting service for 

assisted gardens and the supported housing complexes. This has been secured through 

investment in new machinery.  

 

2.6 Operating in a professional, safe, efficient and effective way in all we do 

Managing the business in the right way to professional standards across all areas of activity 

is good value for money. A review of working practices and associated health and safety 

arrangements has been undertaken. Accident reporting and investigation processes have 

been reviewed and improved. 

 

2.7 Continually assessing levels of productivity and efficiencies 

The company operates in a competitive environment and to compete and deliver maximum 

returns the levels of productivity per employee and the working arrangements/methods used 

need to be constantly reviewed. The reduction in core workforce, as a consequence of core 

contract budget reductions alongside ongoing client demands, has required different 

delivery solutions to be explored. The learning from these and the positive outcomes will be 

adopted for the 2021/2022 season. 

 

17



 

 
 

2.8 Generating operational surpluses to maintain a positive cashflow position 

As a relatively new business, which has no guaranteed contractual income levels, we have 

invested significantly in plant, vehicles and equipment designed to deliver a level of business 

for a longer-term contract. The 1.46 million square metres of grass being maintained, 

dispersed across 365 square miles and the equipment required underpins our base costs 

and loan repayments. Close management of our cashflow position is be undertaken on an 

ongoing basis.  

 

3 Financial update 

3.1 The table below provides the latest estimates for the April 2020 to March 2021 trading year 

compared to Business Plan targets. The exempt Appendix 2 provides a more detailed 

breakdown of operating costs. 

 

 Year 1  
Actuals 

Year 2  
Target 

Year 2 
Forecast 

 (2019/20) (2020/21) (2020/21) 

Income    

Council Contract SKDC 1004 865 850 

Private Commercial 53 40 7 

Private Domestic 4 5 13 

Public Sector  0 42 90 

Total Sales 1061 952 960 

Expenditure    

Cost of Sales, Admin 
and Interest 

(988) (894) (939) 

Operating Surplus 
before depreciation/ 
taxation 

73 58 21 

 

3.2 We have now reached the end of our second year of trading. Whilst the above figures are 

provisional the end of year accounts will be finalised, with depreciation and any tax 

implications being assessed by our accountants, shortly. 

 

3.3 Our overall sales reached target despite the reduction in our “private commercial” being 

lower than expectations. The Covid pandemic created an uncertain economic environment, 

with many prospective customers closing their premises and placing on hold plans or indeed 

reducing their requirements. SKDC core contract expenditure was lower than expected 

being balanced off by improved “public sector” and “private domestic” sales. The additional 

expenditure against forecast was driven by one-off payments associated with staff turnover 

and a need to bring in additional resource to deliver against contract expectations. The 

Covid impact earlier in the year and core contract funding changes during the year, created 

some inefficiencies. 

 

 

18



 

 
 

 

4 Promotion 

4.1 The Committee requested that the Directors work with the Councils communication team to 

promote the positive work being undertaken by Environment SK. Work has already been 

undertaken to utilise the Councils SKtoday magazine which is delivered to all households. 

Appendix 3 shows an example from the recent Spring edition. This will assist with further 

raising the profile of the Company. Positive news stories will be provided and shared through 

press releases and social media. The example of the new higher standard “cut and collect” 

grass cutting service being provided to Council tenants will be used to raise awareness 

through the Councils tenant’s magazine “Skyline”. Consideration is also being given to other 

opportunities which could utilise other channels of communication. 

 

5 Management and Directors 

5.1 The Board have appointed Douglas Rogers as the company’s Operations Director. Doug 

has 15 years of managing frontline services, predominantly Local Authority grounds 

maintenance and street cleansing where he helped achieved an APSE (Association of 

Public Service Excellence) National award for the cleanest streets.  He has also worked in 

the private sector managing the delivery of both grounds maintenance and waste 

management services in England and South Africa. 

His BSc.(Hons) degree in Wildlife Management has previously been used whilst managing 

grounds maintenance services to enhance council public open spaces, to create woodland 

edge habitat.  Working collaboratively with local conservation groups, volunteers and 

residents, his consultancy helped develop sustainable wildlife habitat in local 

neighbourhoods.   

 

5.2 Following the retirement of one of the Directors (Ian Yates), it is proposed that Ken Lyons, 

Assistant Chief Executive at South Kesteven District Council, becomes a Director. Ken will 

complement the team having a wealth of experience, being Head of Commercialism at 

Birmingham City Council and significant experience and success in senior local government 

roles. 

 

5.3 It is also proposed that Ian Yates is offered the role of non-executive Director for the 

Company later in the year. His experience and knowledge will be beneficial to help steer 

and advise the company as it moves forward. 

Financial Implications reviewed by:Legal Implications reviewed by: 

6 Appendices 

Appendices 1 and 2 contain exempt information. 

Appendix 1 - Sales 

Appendix 2 - Operating costs 

Appendix 3 – SKtoday example communication 

 

 

19



 

 
 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not applicable 

Previously Considered by: Companies 
Committee 

22 September 2020 

Final Decision date   Not applicable 

 

 

 

20



Document is Restricted

21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 – SKtoday example communication 

 

25



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

27

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

31

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 23 February 2021
	4 Updates from the previous meeting
	5 Work Programme 2021 - 2022
	7 Environment SK Limited
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	8 Gravitas Housing Limited
	Appendix1


